UW Tacoma Instructional Continuity Guide

Recommendations for UW Tacoma Faculty in preparation for events that disrupt the Academic mission of the University.



Table of Contents

OUR MISSION
BE PROACTIVE AND PLAN FOR INSTRUCTIONAL DISRUPTIONS1
WHAT IS INSTRUCTIONAL CONTINUITY?1
READINESS ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST1
USE CANVAS OR A COURSE WEBSITE TO PUT MATERIALS ONLINE4
HOW WILL YOU COMMUNICATE WITH YOUR STUDENTS?5
BEST PRACTICES AND STEPS TO AVOID!6
Recommended practices and easy wins6
Practices to avoid7
TEACHING STRATEGIES FOR WHEN CLASSES CANNOT MEET7
SUPPORTED TOOLS FOR INSTRUCTING STUDENTS DURING CAMPUS CLOSURES AND
EMERGENCY SITUATIONS8
Comparison Chart of Synchronous and Asynchronous tools9
ASYNCHRONOUS INSTRUCTIONAL OPTIONS11
Assign online individual, paired or group work11
Best practices for online paired or group work11
Discussion Forums
Student Presentations
Assessment
SYNCHRONOUS INSTRUCTIONAL OPTIONS12
Record a Zoom meeting12
Canvas Conferences
UW Skype for Business
MIXED ASYNCHRONOUS & SYNCHRONOUS TEACHING13
I HAVE NO INTERNET! WHAT CAN I DO?14
Panopto14
PowerPoint Slide Show Recording14

FACULTY SHOWCASE	14
TRAINING AND SUPPORT OPTIONS	14
BE PROACTIVE! GET HELP AND SUPPORT NOW!	14

OUR MISSION

Student education and academics is the primary mission of the University of Washington -Tacoma. In the event of an emergency that may result in the long-term suspension of campus activities and classes on campus, it is essential to plan for continuity to sustain our campus mission.

The following toolkit of technology recommendations is meant to help instructors prepare for a possible disruption to campus operations (for example, a pandemic or extended severe weather).

This toolkit will help you to:

- Prepare in advance for a disruption
- Conduct classes during a large-scale disruption to campus operations (i.e., major snow event)
- Organize your course materials and communicate with students during normal operations.

BE PROACTIVE AND PLAN FOR INSTRUCTIONAL DISRUPTIONS

WHAT IS INSTRUCTIONAL CONTINUITY?

Instructional continuity refers to the university's and faculty efforts of continuing course work despite and during disruptions due to weather, illness, or other factors. Depending upon the time of year, or quarter, instructional continuity may be critical for final examinations, grading, and/or meeting graduation requirements.

This toolkit is not a definitive list of technology resources, nor is it designed to address nontechnical issues, such as program specific policy, attendance policies or pedagogical best practices. Please keep in mind that during a major "disaster" many of the tools referenced herein may not be available until they are recovered. You will not need to take action on every recommendation in the toolkit. Simply pick and choose the information that is most useful for your teaching context.

*Important: Always align instructional choices with <u>FERPA</u>, the <u>UW Tacoma Cloud Services</u> <u>Policy</u> and the <u>Data Protection Policy for Portable Devices</u>. Protect your students by keeping data (like backups of student grades and contact information) secure!

READINESS ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

Establishing an online presence

It is important to make sure your students are familiar with the organization of your Canvas course site and that you are prepared to utilize it BEFORE a disruption of instruction occurs.

Yes	No	
		I have a published Canvas course for each of my courses with a current syllabus and course schedule posted
		My syllabus contains statements that pertain to inclement weather, emergency and campus closure information.
		I have a way to distribute assignments to my students online such as a Canvas course site.
		I know how to record audio or video materials for class and I know how to share these with my students.
		I have posted or know how to post course materials/readings on Canvas.
		I have setup assignments/grading in Canvas for each of my classes.

Establish channels of communication with your students and colleagues

Plan ahead for unforeseen events. While every scenario cannot be anticipated, let your students know about your communication plan and ways they can obtain up-to-date information.

Yes	No	
		My students know my plan for communicating class information during a disruption in instruction.
		I know how to facilitate discussion with groups of students remotely.
		Students have a way to contact each other and collaborate online and are prepared to do so.

	I know how to hold synchronous online office hours or class sessions with students.
	I have encouraged my students to sign up for UW Alerts and have reviewed with them ways they can get campus/ departmental/course updates during an event.
	I am prepared to record lectures (Panopto, PowerPoint) or have pre-prepared a few lectures to post online if needed.
	I have prepared low-stakes activities for my students to make sure they can access, listen to, and/or watch my lectures online and use technologies that may be required.
	I have a SECURE copy of my student's names, email addresses and alternative contact information.

Student assessment at a distance

Think about how you will collect student work, facilitate collaboration, and maintain student grading in the event of an extended campus closure.

Yes	No	
		I have setup or know how to create online assignment submissions for my class in Canvas.
		I have created or know how to create online surveys, quizzes and exams in Canvas.
		I know how to grade and provide feedback on work submitted online in Canvas.
		I use the Canvas gradebook to track student grades AND I download a SECURE backup copy of the Gradebook periodically throughout the quarter.
		I have thought about and have planned alternative assignments.

USE CANVAS OR A COURSE WEBSITE TO PUT MATERIALS ONLINE

Having course materials online helps you to be prepared and ensures that students always have access to the content they need. The following list contains a number of ways you can share various types of course materials with your students online. Using Canvas, the official learning management system of the UW, is a simple way for your students and you to stay connected. Course sites are automatically created in Canvas each quarter and allow instructors to:

- Post the course syllabus. Please visit the <u>Suggested Syllabi Service Statements page</u> for potential elements (inclement weather, campus and classroom policies, academic support, etc.) to include in your syllabus.
- Post your "in case of emergency" contact information and communication plan in the event of a campus closure.
- Post class lectures
- Provide course materials, including assignments, readings and audio/visual materials
- Collect student assignments online
- Manage quizzes
- Record and submit grades
- Set up and manage online asynchronous discussions
- Set up and manage group work

View Canvas help for instructors

Practice Drills

You may find it helpful to perform "drills" to test your preparedness, and that of your students, to use alternate forms of instruction. Here are some suggested activities that you can do with your students to be ready:

- Send students a welcome email that contains your contact information. Tell students to save this email in a safe place. Maintain a copy for your own records. This ensures that you have students' email information, and students have your contact information. NOTE: You can use Canvas Announcements to email the entire class.
- 2. Send a test email to your students' alternate email addresses. This test message will help your students identify problems with spam filters or firewalls that may block your emails. Suggest to students that they add your primary and secondary email addresses to their approved recipient list.
- 3. Teach one class period through Canvas. This will give you and your students a chance to become familiar with the environment that will be used if classroom instruction must be interrupted.

4. Hold online office hours using Zoom, Skype, requiring your students to join at least one session. This will give you and your students a chance to become familiar with the environment that may be used if classroom instruction must be interrupted and Canvas is also unavailable.

HOW WILL YOU COMMUNICATE WITH YOUR STUDENTS?

Canvas is the preferred method for communicating importance course information to your students. In some cases, Canvas may become inaccessible due to power-outages, system outages or other issues. You should communicate a back-up plan with your students to mitigate any confusion that may arise during an unforeseen event. Here are some possible alternatives for communicating with your students.

- 1 Make sure that you can access your UW email from your phone or on the web
 - a. Email on your phone
 - Modern smartphones and cell-connected devices provide the best way to access email during emergencies. Cell networks are often buffered from disruptions in power and are less susceptible to wind damage than cable, phone and fiber networks. When the worst does happen, cellular services are some of the first systems to be restored.
 - Smartphone apps such as Microsoft Outlook Web App or Gmail for iOS and Android provide a modern interface with functionality superior to either <u>UW G Suite Gmail</u> or <u>UW Office 365 Exchange Online</u> accessed via the web browser.

b. Email on the web

- If you have access to a web browser but you don't have access to your own computer, you can still use <u>UW G Suite Gmail</u> and <u>UW Office 365 Exchange Online</u>. They are both web-based and accessible via the Internet.
- Remember computer security best practices. If you are using someone else's computer or a public computer.
- Make sure the computer is running antivirus. Accessing your UW email from an unprotected computer violates UW policy and puts your personal information at risk.
- Don't cache your password.
- Sign out of your email when you are done and close all browser windows.
- Delete any downloaded file that contains <u>FERPA</u> or sensitive data.
- 2 Create a UW email distribution list for your class and have student emails or phone numbers handy
 - a. On MyUW: You can request an email distribution list for your class on <u>MyUW</u> under the Teaching tab. Class lists will be ready to use the day after you request them.
 - b. UW Mailman Listserv: If you want to create a list for cross-listed courses or combinations of courses, submit a <u>Mailman Instructor Class List</u> request.

c. Class email contact list: You could also post the class contact in your Canvas course so your students can contact each other.

3 Use social networking tools to send messages to your students

- a. Creating and sharing social media pathways with your students using Twitter, private Facebook groups, or other platforms is a great alternative if email or Canvas is not available. It is critical, however, to get students prepared to use these platforms as an alternative method of communication as well. Once you have created a social media presence for your class, give students the opportunity to test it out before a critical need arises.
- b. Twitter, Facebook: While these social networking services are popular, they are not safe for <u>FERPA</u> and <u>HIPAA</u> content. If you use these social networks, do not expose sensitive information, such as names of students in your course.
- c. UW Yammer: Consider using <u>UW Yammer</u>, which provides a <u>FERPA</u>– and <u>HIPAA-</u>aligned environment.

4 Use chat, voice, video or all three

- a. UW Skype for Business: <u>UW Skype for Business</u>, allows you to conduct a chat or a conference with up to 50 participants and a meeting with up to 250 participants. It is both <u>HIPAA</u>– and <u>FERPA-</u>aligned. <u>Learn more</u>.
- b. UW Zoom: Use UW Zoom to participate in group video chat during online class sessions, host virtual office hours, collaborate remotely on research, share screens and host realtime video conversations, host live web broadcasts to thousands of people worldwide and record to the cloud or computer for easy sharing.
- c. <u>UW Google Hangouts: You can chat or conf</u>erence with up to 25 people at once in a UW Google Hangout. UW Google Hangouts are <u>FERPA</u>–aligned, but do not have the BAA required by <u>HIPAA</u>. Hangouts is a feature of <u>UW G Suite</u>. Learn more about <u>Google</u> <u>Hangouts</u>. (Note that FERPA alignment applies only to UW Google Hangouts.)

5 Create a telephone hotline

- a. Voicemail: Turn your voicemail box into a <u>telephone hotline</u>. Update your greeting with timely information about the status of your course(s) or campus operations.
- b. Call menus: Contact <u>UW Information Technology</u> (help@uw.edu) to create enhanced hotline functionality such as call menus (e.g., <u>Dial 1 for X or Dial 2 to reach Y</u>).

BEST PRACTICES AND STEPS TO AVOID!

Recommended practices and easy wins

- Prepare your students to conduct class remotely by introducing remote learning tools and practices early in the quarter. Communicate fully and explicitly with students.
- Summarize all of the changes to your course on a dedicated Canvas page. See: Canvas guides for <u>creating a page</u> and <u>uploading media</u>.

- <u>Utilize Canvas announcements</u> to keep your students up-to-date on any changes or modifications.
- Focus on learning outcomes even if you need to adjust the specific activities that contribute to those outcomes. Keep students moving toward those outcomes. Avoid "busy work."
- Prioritize course activities and focus on delivering the ones with the most significant impact on learning outcomes.
- Take advantage of colleagues' ideas, departmental practices, and share your ideas.
- Communicate your instructional continuity plan through UW Email and your Canvas course site.
- Create and share social media pathways with your students using Twitter, Facebook, or other platforms.
- Whenever possible, keep local secure copies of your documents/grades as backups in case they are inaccessible during an interruption event.

Practices to avoid

- Waiting until the day of an unforeseen event to come up with an alternative plan or learn how to use technology tools.
- Holding class via Zoom at a time and day the class does not meet.
- Extending class beyond the time the class usually meets.
- Increasing the amount of work students are expected to do.
- Asking students to do the same amount and kind of work the syllabus initially
 expected them to do while (a) compressing the work into a shorter time period
 and/or (b) reducing their access to instructor, peer, or campus resources. If you
 have more content than time, reflect on the student learning outcomes for your
 course and focus on those that are the most important.
- Teaching via individual consultation and tutorial (unless you were going to do that anyway).
- Increasing the weight of any graded assignment.
- Extending the course so that it ends after finals week. Many students have multiple finals and many will have a time conflict during finals week.
- Rescheduling finals.
- Adding a class session during finals week.

TEACHING STRATEGIES FOR WHEN CLASSES CANNOT MEET

It is important to understand that, depending on the type of event that causes a disruption in instruction, each student may be facing a variety of connectivity and communication challenges.

SUPPORTED TOOLS FOR INSTRUCTING STUDENTS DURING CAMPUS CLOSURES AND EMERGENCY SITUATIONS

Tools for specific instructional need

Listed below are a number of tools to help faculty work with students when they are unable to come to campus.

	Synchronous (meet online at same time)	Asynchronous (participate online at any time)
Lecture Recording/Online Class meetings	Zoom - Have online lectures, face to face and record them for later viewing. Skype for Business Conferencing with UW and off- campus users, distance learning, and instant messaging.	Zoom - To record presentations and share them. Panopto Easy recording and reviewing of videos from courses, lectures, and presentations. Integrated with Canvas. Available immediately for student review. PowerPoint Slide Show Recording Record your presentation directly within PowerPoint and upload the file into Canvas (primarily for students to submit to faculty)
Discussions	Canvas Chat Room open to the whole class, keeps history of conversations Zoom - Interact with students in real time in an online classroom.	<u>Canvas Discussion Boards</u>
Assessment	Poll Everywhere - real time polling	Canvas Gradebook Canvas Quizzes Canvas Assignments Poll Everywhere Surveys
Small Group Collaboration	Zoom - Students can meet one on one or in groups via face/voice chat.	Canvas Groups Canvas Discussion Boards Google G Suite

Comparison Chart of Synchronous and Asynchronous tools

	Panopto	Canvas Conferences	Skype for Business	Zoom Pro	PowerPoint
Live 2-Way Conferencing		Х	x	Х	
Screen Share		Х	Х	X	
Chat		Х	Х	X	
Recording/Lecture Capture	X	X	x	Х	x
Offline Recording (upload once connectivity restored)	х				x
Storage/Recording Delivery	Auto Delivery to Canvas Course	Auto Delivery to Canvas Course	Computer Hard Drive/Manual Upload	Cloud or Hard Drive Recording/ Send Link	Computer Hard Drive/Manual Upload
Download Software for Initial Use/Recording	x		x	X	Included

	Panopto	Canvas Conferences	Skype for Business	Zoom Pro	PowerPoint
Mobile App Available Google Play Store Apple App Store	Х	Use Browser	х	X	Х
Session Time Limit	Unlimited	Unlimited	Unlimited	Unlimited	Unlimited
Cross Platform (PC/MAC)	х	Х	PC Preferred	Х	Х
Discussion Notes	Х				
Webcast	X				

ASYNCHRONOUS INSTRUCTIONAL OPTIONS

Pre-record your lectures

Pre-recording lectures works for classes of any size and is especially useful for large lectures. It's an excellent option for students who may not be available during class time (snow days, kids at home). Colleen Craig (ASA Teaching Fellow, Chemistry faculty) says it's easy to record lectures using Panopto.

Below are some tutorials she located on the Panopto website:

- Installing Panopto (Windows and Mac)
- Recording a video (<u>Windows</u> and <u>Mac</u>)
- Editing your video

For more information, check out <u>Academic Innovation' Panopto FAQs</u> page.

Assign online individual, paired or group work

- Ask students to complete a Canvas quiz after viewing your pre-recorded lecture or completing assigned readings.
- Ask students to work on problems, projects, or drafts online. They can do so either individually, in pairs, or groups. Then they submit the work and discussit together.
- Students are not all working at the same time, but they do submit the workby a specific time and date. (E.g.: Please submit the draft by 1:00 p.m. on February 25. Peer review the drafts written by the students in your group, using the protocol. Then submit your peer reviews by 5:00 p.m. on March 1.)

Best practices for online paired or group work

- It's best to use part or all of an assignment students are already working on—or an activity you'd planned to have students do in class—rather than create an additional graded assignment.
- Assign groups of students to do different readings on the syllabus and then facilitate asynchronous, online discussion of the readings together (an online version of the "jigsaw" activity).
- Use the Canvas peer review feature for students to submit rough drafts, and give each other feedback on drafts, as per a protocol you post on Canvas.

Discussion Forums

You could <u>set up a Canvas Forum</u> to foster an asynchronous discussion. For more guided discussion, you might consider asking students to write one-page response papers on a particular topic, post their response in a Canvas discussion board and then you could ask each student to respond to at least one other student's paper.

Student Presentations

Students can record their presentations offline using <u>PowerPoint</u> or <u>Panopto</u> and then share them out to faculty through Canvas.

Assessment

If class time usually includes activities to evaluate student learning, consider <u>online quizzing</u> in Canvas

SYNCHRONOUS INSTRUCTIONAL OPTIONS

Meet online via Zoom Pro

While best for classes of 50 or fewer students, Zoom can accommodate up to 300 participants easily.

Riki Thompson (Writing Studies faculty, UW Tacoma) met her class via Zoom when campus was closed. If you've already got a Zoom Pro account, let your students know via Canvas that you'll meet with them at the usual time and day via Zoom. Advise them to be at their desktop or laptop ahead of time to try out the link you'll have sent them.

Include some Zoom best practices in your email to students:

- Use a computer that is in a quiet room, without other computers that are accessing Zoom.
- Click on the Zoom meeting link sent by the instructor.
- Unmute the audio and video at the bottom left-hand side of the screen.
- When you are not talking, mute your audio.
- Use the chat feature at the right if you have questions.

Record a Zoom meeting

Your Zoom meeting <u>can also be recorded to your computer</u> and <u>uploaded to</u> <u>Canvas</u>. This is helpful for:

Students who are unable to get online to join a live session.

• A small class that requires extensive interaction (be careful to remind

students that the meeting is being recorded).

• Have students meet online to do team or group work during class time

Zoom Pro users can also easily share their cloud recordings.

You can use peer review or other Canvas features during the time your class regularly meets.

Let your students know in advance how long this activity will take and to contact you via Canvas with any questions. If a number of students ask the same question, you can post an answer on a Canvas page to everyone.

Canvas Conferences

Virtual office hours, meetings, student groups, and lectures. Integrated with Canvas. <u>Learn</u> <u>more about Canvas Conferences</u>

UW Skype for Business

Conferencing with UW and off-campus users, distance learning, and instant messaging. <u>Learn</u> <u>more about UW Skype for Business</u>

MIXED ASYNCHRONOUS & SYNCHRONOUS TEACHING

Pre-record your lecture and offer a supplemental live Zoom meeting

- Pre-record a lecture using Panopto (or Zoom), and offer a supplemental live meeting via Zoom for follow-up questions.
- This format would not require recording the follow-up session and is a useful option for those that are comfortable with it.

Another option is to have students record a presentation or reflection for submission to Canvas and then follow-up via a synchronous Zoom meeting.

I HAVE NO INTERNET! WHAT CAN I DO?

Instructors can still record lectures and prepare content offline using Panopto or PowerPoint. For more information, please see the "Supported Tools for instructing students during campus closures and emergency situations" section.

Panopto

With Panopto's offline functionality, you can record audio, video, screen images, or PowerPoint slideshows. Panopto will capture the content and store the material locally on the computer that is running Panopto. Once connectivity is restored, sign in to the Panopto recorder, locate your recording, and upload to the server. Follow these step-by-step guides:

Mac – Upload Offline Recording

Windows – Upload Offline Recording

PowerPoint Slide Show Recording

Presentations made with <u>PowerPoint's built-in slide show recording</u> will be stored on your computer. Users will need to upload manually once the network is operational. Manual uploads can be performed using the EDIT tab in one of your Canvas pages and select the Record/Upload Media button inside the Rich Content Editor.

FACULTY SHOWCASE

When the snow began to fall in Winter 2019, instructors across the UW had to think quickly about how to keep their courses on track. <u>Meet faculty who were prepared and adapted</u> <u>quickly to the disruption in instruction</u>.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT OPTIONS

BE PROACTIVE! GET HELP AND SUPPORT NOW!

For more information on how to deal with and prepare for campus emergencies, please visit the <u>UW Tacoma Alert page</u>.

Contact <u>Academic Innovation</u> for more Canvas support and to discover other optional tools for learning.

For live chat support, visit <u>UW Tacoma Information Technology</u>.

If you have further questions regarding how to access and use technology please contact Information Technology at tachelp@uw.edu or 253-692-4357.

Other UW Seattle resources if UW Tacoma is offline.

help@uw.edu

(206) 221-5000

IT Connect

UW Seattle Canvas Support